
UNITED 
NATIONS 

Economic and Social 
Council 

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS 

Distr. 
GENERAL 

E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
15 August 1991 

Original: ENGLISH 

SUB-COMMISSION ON PREVENTION OF DISCRIMINATION AND 
PROTECTION OF MINORITIES 

Forty-third session 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 8th MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Friday, 9 August 1991, at 10 a.m. 

Chairman: Mr. JOINET 

later: Mrs. BAUTISTA 

CONTENTS 

Elimination of racial discrimination (continued) 

(a) Measures to combat racism and racial discrimination and the role of the 
Sub-Commission (continued) 

(b) Adverse consequences for the enjoyment of human rights of political, 
military, economic and other forms of assistance given to the racist and 
colonialist regime of South Africa (continued) 

Elimination of all forms of intolerance and of discrimination based on 
religion or belief 

This record is subject to correction. 

E 

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They 
should be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the 
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this document to 
the Official Records Editing Section, room E.4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva. 

Any corrections to the reeords of the· public m~etings of the 
Sub-Commission at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum, 
to be issued shortly after the end of the session. 

GE.91-12698/3534B 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 2 

The meeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m. 

ELIMINATION OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION (agenda item 5) (continued) 

(a) MEASURES TO r MBAT RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATION AND THE ROLE OF THE 
SUB-COMMISS •. ~ (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/12; E/CN.4/Sub.2/1989/8 and Add.l; 
E/CN.4/1991/63 and Add.l) (continued) 

(b) ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES FOR THE ENJOYMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS OF POLITICAL, 
MILITARY, ECONOMIC AND OTHER FORMS OF ASSISTANCE GIVEN TO THE RACIST AND 
COLONIALIST REGIME OF SOUTH AFRICA (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/13 and Add.1) 
(continued) 

1. Mr. AKTAN (Observer for Turkey) said that racism was fast becoming one of 
the most important human rights abuses, but strangely it did not appear to be 
receiving the attention it deserved from the international community. Only 
three Governments and one non-governmental organization had responded to the 
Secretary-General's request in Sub-Commission resolution 1990/2, inviting 
comments and relevant information for the preparation of an overview of 
current trends of racism, discrimination, intolerance and xenophobia against 
vulnerable groups in the world. 

2. Racism was in essence not entirely suitable for a standard-setting 
approach. People could not be told what to do in terms of racism, and even 
education might be of limited value in that context. The painful experiences 
of the past seemed to be forgotten after a single generation, and reminders 
aroused transient feelings of abhorrence. That might explain the international 
community's resistance to taking up the subject and facing it seriously. 

3. There was an appalling confusion as to concepts in the various documents 
and contributions to seminars. There was no adequate definition of racism, 
racial discrimination, racial hatred or even race. Sub-Commission 
resolution 1990/2 mentioned racism, racial discrimination, prejudice, 
intolerance and xenophobia as if they defined different phenomena, whereas in 
another paragraph of the resolution the same concepts were stated to be the 
manifestations of racism. Apartheid and slavery were treated as the two main 
practices of racism in all the papers. There was thus no coherent conceptual 
framework for racism. 

4. Apartheid was the most important form of racism and because of its nature 
independent treatment of it was warranted. Slavery could certainly be a form 
of racism, but the profit motive might overcome racial hatred, which was an 
indispensable ingredient of racism. 

5. Neither ethnic strife, including terrorism, nor war would automatically 
create racism and racial hatred in the parties involved. The struggle for 
economic or natural resources was most often irrelevant, and xenophobia, 
though disturbing, lacked intensity compared with racism. 

6. In his view, the major characteristic of racism and racial hatred was the 
victim's almost complete innocence. There was usually no provocation, demand 
or reaction on the part of the victim, but his mere existence was enough to 
kindle racial hatred in the racist. Racial hatred was not an ordinary anger 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 3 

directed at someone who at least remotely deserved it. It did not consist 
only of a feeling of superiority towards the victim, and racism was not found 
all over the world but only in certain areas where people felt that their 
civilization was more humane, and better, culturally, religiously and 
technologically speaking, than others. 

7. Racial hatred went far beyond that feeling of superiority and conceived 
of the victim not only as inferior but as evil. Why did one part of mankind 
apportion good to itself and evil to others? Psychologists held that under 
crisis conditions human beings or groups projected their feelings of guilt or 
sin on to others. If that were so, then victims were subjected to racial 
hatred because involuntarily they embodied the evil aspects of the racist. 

8. The question arose as to why certain cultures bred feelings of guilt more 
than others and why a certain kind of victim was chosen. 

9. Racism was a grave pathological phenomenon, and should not be confused 
with other, similar abuses. While its nature was not fully known, the remedy 
could not be found through standard-setting or education. It must not be 
explained away by false causes which could lead to its being condoned. Racism 
contaminated the whole of society in varying degrees. If migrant workers were 
chosen as victims of racism, their country of origin and nation became the 
target of racial hatred: hence the myriad prejudices and allegations against 
them. 

10. Since racial hatred could sometimes be unconscious there might be an 
unconscious urge to uphold human rights, albeit as a defence mechanism. There 
was a need to be aware of the complexities and confusion in the subject. 

11. Mrs. FERRIOL (Observer for Cuba) said that, unfortunately, racist and 
discriminatory practices were a feature of everyday life throughout the world. 

12. Apartheid, however, continued to be the most serious problem. The 
reforms adopted by the Government of South Africa were formal rather than 
substantive, and much still had to be done before the legal basis of apartheid 
was abolished and the discriminatory practices of the white minority against 
the black majority came to an end. It was essential that the black population 
of South Africa should have the right to vote. 

13. The system of apartheid in South Africa would have been impossible 
without the political and military support over the years of the capitalist 
Powers, in particular the United States of America, and the vast investments 
of big business which, together with the racist South Africans, had exploited 
the black population and despoiled the natural resources of Namibia. The 
removal of economic sanctions by the United States of America had revealed the 
true motives of the Government of that country with respect to the racist 
policy of the South African Government. 

14. Mr. Khalifa's excellent report (E.CN.4/Sub.2/1991/13 and Add.l) revealed 
the continuing collaboration of some Western Governments with the apartheid 
regime, in flagrant violation of the resolutions of the United Nations. Her 
delegation appreciated the Special Rapporteur's work and considered that his 
mandate should be extended. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 4 

15. Cuba, deeply committed to the cause of the people of South Africa, 
continued to support the African National Congress and the efforts of the 
international community to eradicate the abhorrent apartheid regime. It 
maintained no diplomatic, consular, economic, financial, military or other 
relations with thP South African regime, believing that political and 
diplomatic isole on and economic sanctions were an important deterrent. 

16. If sanctions had been applied earlier, as advocated by various countries, 
and with the same promptness as recent Security Council sanctions, the total 
dismantling of the apartheid system could have started years ago. 

17. The problems related to migrant workers and aliens had increased in 
recent years, particularly in Western countries, where the Governments faced 
the problem of seeking an open-door policy elsewhere in the world in order to 
establish outlets for trade and investment, while meeting increasing resistance 
at home towards the arrival of aliens for economic, social and political 
reasons and towards those aliens already settled in their countries. 

18. The current manifestations of racial discrimination against indigenous 
populations were the result of a historical process of conquest and 
marginalization. The conditions necessary for indigenous peoples to maintain 
their own way of life, their language and culture, had been gradually 
destroyed, while they were excluded from participating in the political, 
economic and social life of the society where they had been born and where 
they lived. Considerable progress had been made in particular by the Working 
Group on Indigenous Populations of the Sub-Commission in recognizing the 
rights of those people. Moreover, real or sometimes imagined discrimination 
was increasing against ethnic, religious, linguistic and other minorities 
which were either excluded from society or assimilated and their group 
characteristics annihilated. 

19. The resurgence of racist, discriminatory, intolerant and chauvinistic 
attitudes towards human groups throughout the world needed the attention 
of the Sub-Commission and other bodies, and her delegation considered it 
necessary that an overview of such trends should be prepared, as requested 
in Sub-Commission resolution 1990/2. It was unfortunate that the 
Secretary-General had been unable to prepare such an overview for the reasons 
that had been explained. 

20. Mrs. Bautista took the Chair. 

21. Mr. IBANGA UDOH (Observer for Nigeria) thanked Mr. Khalifa for his 
comprehensively updated report (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/13 and Add.l) and for his 
eloquent presentation of it. 

22. The international community seemed unable to deal with apartheid. The 
fact that immediate action had been taken to counter the danger in the Gulf 
demonstrated the hypocrisy of the international community which condemned 
apartheid and yet did nothing drastic to end it. 

23. Apartheid could not survive unless it was nurtured and sustained. The 
conclusion to be drawn from the hasty lifting of sanctions against South Africa 
was that when there was a choice between the dollar and the black human life, 
the natural choice was the former. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 5 

24. Mr. Khalifa's report showed how multinational corporations had been 
operating over the years to prop up the apartheid regime. As long as they did 
so there would be no end to apartheid. It was unfortunate that many countries 
had rushed to lift sanctions against South Africa and were urging others to do 
so, using the recent superficial changes in that country to do what they had 
been considering for some itme. 

25. While acknowledging the changes in South Africa in the past two years, 
his Government believed that most of them were calculated and cosmetic. As a 
result of the repeal of the Land Act, how many black Africans could buy land 
because they had the freedom to do so? The solution to apartheid was not a 
piecemeal repeal of isolated acts, but a new constitution to enfranchise the 
blacks, to give every person a vote and guarantee the freedom of all citizens 
irrespective of race. Apartheid could not be reformed: it must be abolished. 
There was nothing that could not be undone while the white minority monopolized 
political power and denied consititutional rights to the black majority. 

26. The relaxation of sanctions would not lead to the abolition of apartheid, 
but would rather give it new strength, rewarding the apartheid regime for 
trying to undo what it ought not to have done in the first place. 

27. It was a false argument that sanctions harmed the blacks more than the 
whites. It was not sanctions that had impoverished the black South Africans 
and made them outcasts in their own home. It was apartheid that had made them 
incapable of contributing to the economic and social well-being of their 
country and had impoverished them. Those with vested economic interests in 
South Africa still advocated that further assistance should be given to the 
regime; but then the Government of South Africa would see no need to abolish 
apartheid. 

28. Apartheid could not be uprooted overnight. The regime had not been 
honest enough in its attempt to change the syste~. Recent events had shown 
that, while the South African Government was telling the world that its 
intentions were genuine, it was at the same time funding operations to portray 
the blacks as opponents of its positive moves. 

29. His Government agreed with those who advocated the encouragement of 
positive forces and the discouragement of negative ones, but it might differ 
if encouragement meant assisting the regime through the lifting of sanctions. 
The African leaders who had met in Abuja, Nigeria, in May 1991 had perhaps 
understood the issue better. In the name of the Organization of African 
Unity, they had resolved that sanctions should be maintained but also to 
review the lifting of sanctions in the light of positive developments in 
South Africa. His Government believed that such developments should be 
nothing less than irreversible steps to effect political and constitutional 
changes in South Africa with a system of one person one vote and fundamental 
human freedoms granted to all citizens. 

30. Mr. YOSHIKARA (Observer for Japan), making a statement equivalent to a 
right of reply, recalled that the representative of the World Council of 
Churches had referred to his Government's policy and the legal system for 
foreign workers in Japan. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 6 

31. The number of foreign workers not qualified to stay or to work in Japan 
but who did so was increasing because of the great economic difference between 
Japan and the neighbouring Asian countries and the serious shortage of labour 
in some domestic industries. 

32. The human rights of foreign workers were safeguarded by various social 
security acts, including the Labour Standard Law, the Labour Safety and 
Sanitation Law, the Minimum Wages Law and the Workmen's Accident Compensation 
Insurance Law, which were designed to protect workers in Japan even if they 
were not qualified to stay or work there. 

33. Consultations on the protection of the human rights of foreign workers 
were held at local and national level regardless of whether a worker's 
residence status was legal or not. 

34. None the less, foreign workers not qualified to stay or work in Japan 
hesitated to exercise their rights for fear of being reported to the 
immigration authorities and deported home. However the Labour Standards 
Bureau of the Ministry of Labour and the Legal Affairs Bureau of the Ministry 
of Justice were open for consultation by foreign workers including those not 
qualified to stay or work in Japan. Appropriate guidance was given to such 
workers in regard to non-paymeut of wages, compensation for labour accidents, 
procedures for extending their period of stay and so on. Even if the bureaux 
were aware of the legal status of those consulting them, as a matter of 
principle they did not report the fact to the Immigration Bureau. 

35. Moreover, the Immigration Bureau itself tried to protect the human rights 
of foreign workers. If any problem such as the non-payment of wages or labour 
accidents were revealed in the process of deportation, the Bureau communicated 
the fact to related authorities such as the Labour Standards Bureau and helped 
them to solve the problem. 

36. Brokers and employers exploiting foreign workers were the main cause of 
the violations of the human rights of foreign workers. The police and the 
Immigration Bureau in Japan were attempting to prevent exploitation and 
inhumane treatment by enforcing all the relevant laws to combat prostitution 
and the forced labour of foreign workers. New provisions had recently been 
enacted in the Immigration Law to prohibit activities by brokers and employers 
promoting the illegal labour of foreigners. 

37. The Government of Japan had given careful consideration to the protection 
of human rights of foreign workers and wished to exchange views on the subject 
with others, including European countries which had similar problems. 

38. Mr. PACE (Centre for Human Rights) recalled that at the 6th meeting of 
the Sub-Commission on 7 August 1991, Mr. van Boven had requested the 
Under-Secretary-General for Human Rights, in his capacity as coordinator of 
the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination, to give 
additional information on document E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/ll, and in particular on 
part 2 entitled ·~onitoring apartheid in transition". 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 7 

39. The document had been prepared pursuant to a specific request by the 
Sub-Commission in resolution 1990/1 to the Secretary-General to consider ways 
and means necessary to respond to urgent situations and new trends involving 
racism and racial discrimination in any part of the world and to prepare an 
outline, for consideration by the Sub-Commission, for possible activities for 
increasing the effectiveness of United Nations action to combat racism and 
racial discrimination, reflecting the principles contained in that resolution. 

40. The document in question consequently addressed contemporary forms of 
racism and racial discrimination in paragraph 10 and the question of apartheid 
in transition in paragraph 11. 

41. It would be appreciated that at that stage such suggestions were 
necessarily preliminary and explanatory. They were intended to stimulate 
and facilitate discussions on ways and means of responding to new trends and 
developments in the fight against racism and racial discrimination and in 
particular on the role of the Sub-Commission as the expert body in the system 
of prevention of discrimination and in the overall efforts of the 
United Nations in that field. 

42. In preparing the document, a number of sources had been used including 
the study by Mr. Eide (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1989/8 and Add.l), the reports of the 
Seminar on cultural dialogue between the countries of origin and the host 
countries of migrant workers held in 1989 in Athens, the Seminar on the 
political, historical, economic, social and cultural factors contributing to 
racism, racial discrimination and apartheid held in Geneva in December 1990, 
as well as other relevant documents of the General Assembly, the Economic and 
Social Council and the Commission on Human Rights. The results of an 
inter-agency meeting organized by the Under-Secretary-General for Human Rights 
in his capacity as coordinator of the Second Decade on the common efforts of 
the United Nations system to implement the Second Decade had also been taken 
into account. 

43. The situation in South Africa had been of major concern to the 
United Nations almost since its inception, and it was no less so today as 
attempts were made to abolish apartheid and bring about a united, non-racial 
and democratic country. In his statement of 3 June 1991 to the Heads of State 
and Government of the Organization of African Unity, the Secretary-General had 
said that it was encouraging to note that the tremendous sacrifices made by 
Africa's black majority were beginning to bear fruit in South Africa and that 
efforts must continue and be increased. A historic opportunity was available 
in South Africa and it should be seized. 

44. The latest initiative by South Africa's President and the political 
judgement and foresight shown by black leaders gave reason to believe that, 
despite the set-backs and obstacles, the advent of a new South Africa would 
become a reality in the near future. As always, the organizations and agencies 
of the United Nations system stood ready to provide assistance within their 
spheres of competence - for instance, in dealing with the return of exiles. 

45. The process which had begun in South Africa would be difficult and 
complex. A number of obstacles remained to be overcome, of which intercommunal 
violence and release of all political prisoners were but two examples. All 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 8 

the parties must do everything in their power to put an end to such a state of 
affairs. It was, however, particularly incumbent on the South African 
authorities to ensure that the security forces performed their functions 
absolutely impartially. It was in the spirit of that statement by the 
Secretary-General that the Secretariat had sought to stimulate reflection by 
the Sub-Commission. 

46. For many years the Sub-Commission had been monitoring the human rights 
situation in South Africa through Mr. Khalifa's reports and its general debate 
on racial discrimination and the implementation of the Decades. Members of 
the Sub-Commission had been participating in meetings or seminars on the 
political development processes in South Africa. Through that accumulated 
knowledge and experience, the Sub-Commission was well equipped to provide the 
forum for thought and reflection to strengthen the promotion and protection of 
human rights in the transitional period of apartheid. The very nature of the 
Sub-Commission as a body of independent experts might provide a particular 
opportunity, in cooperation with other forums concerned, to give assistance 
and advice to those who might request it in their endeavours to bring an end 
to apartheid, not only in law but also in fact. 

47. As far as the banking arrangements at the Palais des Nations were 
concerned, he wished to report that at a meeting held in October 1988 between 
the United Nations Office at Geneva and Lloyds Bank, Lloyds had informed UNOG 
of its difficulties in continuing to serve as the latter's main banker. 
Pending further deliberation and a final decision by its Headquarters, Lloyds 
had suggested that UNOG should begin to look around for alternatives. Lloyds 
had later indicated its decision to close its UNOG operations. 

48. Upon learning of Lloyds' intentions, UNOG had begun to look into 
alternatives. It had studied the experience of other organizations, including 
ILO's search for an alternative banker to UBS. No bank had been able to 
respond favourably to ILO for a variety of reasons, including limitations 
in their authorized scope of operation within Switzerland. In view of 
United Nations policies with regard to South Africa, the Director General 
had given the instruction that none of the four largest Swiss banks or any 
blacklisted bank should be approached. Other banks had been approached. From 
all those contacts, only one small local bank not identified in any list 
related to the South Africa question had shown interest in providing banking 
services to UNOG. After preliminary discussions in 1989, a "shopping list" of 
UNOG's banking requirements had been discussed at that bank's headquarters. 
Later, after more than a month's deliberation, the bank had informed UNOG 
that it was not in a position to provide the banking services required. 
After the failure of the discussions with that bank, UNOG had identified, in 
September 1989, another local bank also not included in the lists relating to 
South Africa, as a possible prospect. The discussions with that bank had not 
been fruitful. 

49. In its letter of 30 July 1990, Lloyds Bank had stated that it would 
discontinue its services to UNOG by the end of 1990. In the light of that 
deadline, UNOG, having no viable options left, had decided to bring 
Headquarters' attention to the distinct possibility that it would not have a 
bank at the Palais in 1991. Headquarters had indicated that in the light of 
the need to ensure that UNOG had banking services on 1 January 1991, the 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 9 

search should be pursued, without further delay, among Swiss banks, including 
the three largest. UNOG had contacted specialized agencies in Geneva to 
inquire about their banking arrangements and had ascertained that Societe de 
Banque Suisse (SBS) was the main banker for all the agencies contacted, 
except for one. Faced with the prospect of having no banking service as of 
1 July 1991, UNOG had requested Headquarters for an exception to be made to 
enable it to deal with a large Swiss bank, if only at the minimum required 
level of business - salary, vendors and other day-to-day payments. Upon the 
recommendation of the Committee on Contracts at Headquarters, a waiver had 
been granted and consequently an agreement had been reached with SBS. 

50 Mrs. ATTAR said that, while she appreciated the reply, she was very 
disappointed at the state of affairs that it revealed. She hoped that the 
Secretariat would continue to seek some other Swiss bank that had not been so 
heavily involved in breaking the sanctions against South Africa. 

51. Mr. van BOVEN said that it was his understanding that there were at least 
two banks in Geneva, the Caisse d'epargne and the Banque cantonale, that did 
not have special ties with South Africa. 

52. Mr. KHALIFA said that he had been very sad to note the presence of the 
Societe de Banque Suisse in the Palais des Nations. It seemed that the 
Secretariat had been acting under some kind of force majeure. He wished to 
know the duration of the contract signed with the Societe de Banque Suisse and 
whether the Secretariat was pursuing the search for another bank. 

53. Mr. PACE (Centre for Human Rights) said that inquiries would be made 
about the points raised and he would report back to the Sub-Commission with 
the appropriate information. 

54. The CHAIRMAN said that the Sub-Commission had concluded its discussion of 
item 5. 

ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF INTOLERANCE AND OF DISCRIMINATION BASED ON 
RELIGION OR BELIEF (agenda item 13) (E/CN.4/1991/56; E/CN.4/Sub.2/1989/32) 

55. Mr. KEILAU (Centre for Human Rights) recalled that the item had been 
considered by the Sub-Commission since 1983, the Commission on Human Rights 
having requested the Sub-Commission to undertake a comprehensive and thorough 
study of the current dimensions of the problems of intolerance and of 
discrimination on grounds of religion or belief, using as terms of reference 
the text of the Declaration on the Elimination of All Forms of Intolerance and 
of Discrimination Based on Religion or Belief. In 1985, the Sub-Commission 
had decided to consider the item biennially. At its forty-first session the 
Sub-Commission had considered a working paper (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1989/32) prepared 
by Mr. van Boven containing a compilation of provisions relevant to the 
elimination of intolerance and discrimination based on religion or belief and 
examining the issues and factors which should be considered before any drafting 
of a further binding international instrument took place. 

56. The Sub-Commission's attention was also drawn to the latest report 
of the Special Rapporteur of the Commission on Human Rights, Mr. Vidal 
d'Almeida Ribeiro, contained in document E/CN.4/1991/56. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 10 

57. The Sub-Commission might further wish to take into account 
General Assembly resolution 45/136 and Commission on Human Rights 
resolution 1991/48. 

58. Mr. GUISSE said that everything that man received from God was a source 
of peace, understanding and tolerance. All religions taught love and 
fraternity. Although in many countries several religions coexisted 
harmoniously, that was not the case in others, where religions had been 
transformed into rival armed groups which massacred one another. Even the 
wearing of religious insignia was sometimes considered to be a provocation. 

59. At the present time discriminatory practices based on religion were often 
confused with discriminatory practices based on race, especially in countries 
where there was much immigration. To distinguish between the two types of 
discrimination was difficult, but in any event the result was the same. The 
world seemed to be heading for a period in which men would be obliged to 
practise their religion in secrecy, and many groups of human beings went in 
fear of religious or ethnic persecution. In his report (E/CN.4/1991/56) 
Mr. Vidal d'Almeida Ribeiro had supplied the replies given by some States to 
his questionnaire; unfortunately, many States, including States in which 
discrimination based on religion occurred, had not replied. The Sub-Commission 
should therefore help the Special Rapporteur with his work by appealing to all 
Governments to take part in the dialogue. Discrimination based on religion 
was increasing in the world, and •a large-scale educational programme needed to 
be undertaken to counter it. 

60. Mr. SACHAR said that the item under consideration was extremely 
important, since the population of every country included different religious 
denominations. There was always a temptation for the major religious group to 
fashion the State in terms of its own beliefs. The population of India had 
included followers of many major religions for centuries. Hinduism was the 
dominant religion, but there was no feeling of dominance. The country's 
Constitution provided for freedom of religion and the right of every religious 
or linguistic minority to set up and manage its own schools. At one time an 
attempt had been made to ensure that a government representative sat on the 
boards of management of such schools, but the Supreme Court had declared such 
an arrangement to be inadmissable because it would constitute interference in 
the affairs of the schools. An attempt had also been made to cut off the 
large subsidies which the Government provided to religious minority schools, 
but that, too, had been struck down by the courts. 

61. Religious intolerance was a violation of human rights. There were 
outbreaks of religious strife in India, but they nearly always arose 
suddenly. In the case of a communication that had been dealt with by the 
Commission on Human Rights, it had been found that although the police had 
committed excesses, those excesses had had no connection with religious 
discrimination, which was a punishable offence. 

62. Mr. van BOVEN said that since 1989, when the Sub-Commission had last 
considered the item under discussion, major developments had occurred having 
an important bearing on the life and the relationships between people of 
diverse religions or beliefs. In the report (E/CN.4/1991/56) which the 
Special Rapporteur, Mr. Vidal d'Almeida Ribeiro had submitted in January 1991 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 11 

to the Commission on Human Rights, he had referred to disturbing developments, 
stating that in recent years there had been an emergence of sectarian and 
intransigent attitudes regarding religious matters and observing that the 
phenomenon had not only affected the freedoms and rights of minority 
communities in the countries where such discrimination occurred, but that it 
had also become a destabilizing factor in the international system and a 
source of tension and conflict between States. On the other hand, the 
Special Rapporteur had expressed his satisfaction with the positive impact of 
the policy of openness and transparency in the area of religious freedom and 
manifestations of worship in Eastern Europe. 

63. Religious revivalism was on the increase. In many parts of the world, 
religion, and particularly religious revivalism, had a predominant impact on 
social and political life. The phenomenon constituted a challenge to the very 
basis of human rights and to the notion of pluralism which was so essential to 
them. In the name of religion many people were subjected to violence and 
brutality with immense suffering. Fundamentalist leaders of various religions 
and confessions attached an exclusivist character to particular religious or 
ethnic communities and put "outsiders" in an inferior position. Such leaders 
claimed that whenever a conflict arose between internationally recognized 
human rights and the prescriptions of a religion or belief, the latter would 
prevail. That position defied the concept of the universality of human rights 
which underlay the whole movement for their promotion and protection, as 
embodied in the Charter of the United Nations and in international human 
rights instruments. Religious revivalism and its inherent danger to human 
rights gave added importance to the norms and values enshrined in the 
Declaration on the Elimination of All Forms of Intolerance and of 
Discrimination Based on Religion or Belief, the preamble to which stressed the 
need to promote understanding, tolerance and respect in matters relating to 
freedom of religion or belief and to prevent the use of religion or belief for 
ends inconsistent with the Charter of the United Nations and the Declaration. 

64. Various parts of the world were also witnessing an emergence or a revival 
of nationalism. In many societies sentiments of nationalism were bolstered by 
religious factors. Nationalism was not a negative phenomenon in itself, since 
belonging to a nation and the sense of having a national identity were 
important values which people in their respective societies were supposed to 
share and to appreciate. When, however, nationalism produced feelings of 
superiority and exclusivism and when the religious factor as a component of 
nationalism strengthened such feelings, manifestations of national and 
religious intolerance and discrimination would abound. People belonging to 
minority groups were seriously affected in such situations, which might also 
represent a destabilizing factor in international relations and cause tensions 
and conflict between States. Moreover, the violation or failure to respect 
the religious rights of minorities - and in some societies where a minority 
represented the dominating power, the rights of the majority - often led to 
the infringement of other human rights such as the right to life, to physical 
integrity, liberty and security of the person, freedom of movement and freedom 
of opinion and expression. 

65. It was clear that the prevention and resolution of conflicts, regardless 
of whether they were of national or international character, was a major and 
primary responsibility of Governments and intergovermental organizations, 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 12 

notably the United Nations. However, an effective peace strategy was also 
dependent upon the active support and cooperation of other sectors of national 
and international society. In that respect an instrumental role could be 
played by religious organizations, religious institutions and religious 
communities. Against that background, it was proper to endorse strongly 
the recommendations formulated by the United Nations seminar on the 
encouragement of understanding, tolerance and respect in matters relating to 
freedom of religion or belief, held from 3-14 December 1984, in particular the 
recommendation that stated: "Religious bodies and groups at every level have 
a role to play in the promotion and protection of religious freedoms or 
beliefs. They should foster the spirit of tolerance within their ranks and 
between religions or beliefs. Inter-faith dialogue based on the Declaration 
on the Elimination of All Forms of Intolerance and of Discrimination Based on 
Religion or Belief should be pursued at all levels." (ST/HR/SER.A/16, 
para. 102 (h)). 

66. In recent years there had been extensive discussions in the Sub-Commission 
and the Commission on Human Rights on whether the Declaration on the 
Elimination of All Forms of Intolerance and of Discrimination Based on 
Religion or Belief should be followed up by a binding instrument. In the 
working paper (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1989/32) he had presented to the Sub-Commission 
in 1989, he had advised a cautious approach and pleaded for solid preparatory 
work on the basis of sound research and careful analysis if it was decided to 
draft such a binding instrument. He had also pointed out that any drafting 
process should be accompanied by consultation and dialogue among interested 
groups, organizations and movements from across a broad socio-political and 
religious spectrum. It was his strong view that the complexity of the subject 
matter and the potentially devisive phenomena of religious prejudice and 
intolerance warranted a great deal of diligence and wisdom. In addition, the 
issue of implementation merited further thought and reflection in the light of 
long-term approaches and solutions. He agreed with the recent conclusion 
reached by the persons chairing human rights treaty bodies and put forward in 
their third report (A/45/636) to the United Nations General Assembly on the 
effective implementation of United Nations instruments on human rights and 
effective functioning of bodies established pursuant to such instruments: "As 
far as possible and appropriate, the supervision of new human rights treaty 
obligations should be entrusted to one or other of the existing treaty 
bodies. Similarly, careful consideration should always be given to the 
drafting of protocols to existing instruments in preference to entirely new 
treaties, wherever appropriate." (para. 61). He therefore believed that if it 
were decided to draw up a new binding international instrument on freedom of 
religion or belief, preference should be given to a new protocol additional to 
the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights. He also considered 
that the Sub-Commission should not be precipitous and should wait until the 
Human Rights Committee completed the formulation of its general comments on 
article 18 of the Covenant. 

67. Finally, in connection with freedom of religion or belief two factors had 
always to be taken into account. First, the exercise of religious liberty 
involved other human rights. Second, there were many situations where 
religious discord, religious tension and religious conflict virtually escaped 
the domain of governmental control, and where non-State actors with religious 
or non-religious affiliations made use of religious divisions and antagonisms 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 13 

to pursue their own ends. In his report the previous year (E/CN.4/1990/46), 
the Special Rapporteur had said in that regard: "While intolerance may in 
some cases be the result of a deliberate policy on the part of Governments, it 
may also frequently derive from economic, social or cultural tensions, and 
take the form of acts of hostility or conflicts between different groups. 
Behind phenomena of intolerance may also be found certain dogmatic 
interpretations which stir up misunderstandings or hatred between different 
religious communities or encourage dissension within them." (para. 13). 
Bearing that statement in mind, it was necessary to plead for a broader 
approach and a more comprehensive strategy than the traditional United Nations 
method of involving Governments. Perhaps more than in any other matter the 
building of understanding, respect and tolerance between people of different 
religions required efforts on the part of the non-governmental sector, in 
particular communities and groups based on religion or belief. 

68. In his working paper to the Sub-Commission in 1989 he had given 
particular weight to inter-faith dialogue and to the efforts of all 
concerned -member States, intergovernmental and non-governmental 
organizations, including movements, groups, associations and institutions 
based on religion or belief - to launch broad and intensive programmes of 
communication and education within constituencies as well as across national, 
religious and other boundaries. In the light of that approach, Sub-Commission 
resolution 1989/23 had recommended that a seminar should be organized within 
the United Nations programme in the field of human rights, on the 
interrelationship between the enjoyment of the right to freedom of thought, 
conscience, religion and belief and the other human rights and fundamental 
freedoms, taking into account the work carried out by CERD and the Human 
Rights Committee in that field. The Sub-Commission had also recommended 
that consideration should be given to organizing, in cooperation with UNESCO, 
the United Nations University, other interested intergovernmental and 
non-governmental organizations as well as academic and research institutions, 
a global consultation on the positions and approaches of different religions 
and beliefs to human rights and fundamental freedoms. Sometimes the 
Commission followed up the Sub-Commission's recommendation; at other times it 
did not. In the present case, the Commission had not provided any follow-up. 
Nevertheless, the recommendations which the Sub-Commission had made two years 
before were still valid and perhaps more so. He believed that the 
Sub-Commission should repeat them. 

69. Mrs. WARZAZI recalled that the respect for the right of each individual 
to freedom of religion and the practising of its precepts had been given 
particular attention by the international community since the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights. The drafting of a specific declaration for the 
protection of persons practising a religion or holding a belief had involved 
long discussions and negotiations, and often delaying tactics; but the 
Declaration had finally been adopted in 1981 under the impetus given by the 
Netherlands, although it was fair to say that her own country had played an 
extremely important role in facilitating the consensus to adopt that 
Declaration. 

70. Since then, several initiatives have been taken, greatly facilitated by 
the turn taken by international events. At present, the attitude of the 
leaders of some countries had changed with regard to religion, and consequently 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 14 

churches, mosques, monasteries and temples had been re-opened and the followers 
of those religions were free to worship. Nevertheless, it had to be admitted 
that in other countries religious minorities were still subject to persecution 
and even to massacres, as was the case of thousands of Muslims, and that 
countries were shaken by religious conflicts and bloody clashes, encouraged by 
parties for different reasons. 

71. The Declaration that had finally been adopted was aimed at protecting 
persons practising a religion or holding a belief against intolerance by 
Governments or by groups or communities professing another religion or belief. 
Thus, up to the present, attention had been focused on the dangers of that 
intolerance incompatible with the norms of human rights. However, the practice 
of some religions was at present assuming a particularly dangerous dimension, 
since, owing to their fanaticism, accompanied sometimes by political aims, 
they appeared particularly intolerant, not towards outsiders but towards their 
own followers. Hence there arose situations of intolerable violence which 
those religions themselves vigorously condemned, for the final aim of every 
religion was tolerance; it was a means of ensuring peace and safety for all 
those who had recourse to it and to make brotherhood and the love of one's 
neighbour prevail. 

72. As Mr. van Boven had pointed out, such religious violence could be the 
source of conflicts with neighbouring or other countries affected by the 
establishment of religious regimes sharply departing from the sacred principle 
of tolerance and love of one's neighbour. Consequently, the attention of the 
international community and more particularly that of the Special Rapporteur 
of the Commission on Human Rights should be drawn to the phenomenon of 
fanaticism which did not even respect places of worship which might be the 
subject of a special study to determine its causes and the ways to meet that 
new threat to human rights, and notably the threat to the security and the 
life of worshippers. 

73. Mr. EIDE said that he had been somewhat disturbed by the statement made 
by the observer for Turkey under agenda item 5 that racism occurred not 
throughout the world but in certain parts of the world where people felt 
that their civilization was culturally, religiously, and technologically 
incomparably better than others, the implication apparently being that racism 
was a problem of the West and that because of that racism there was a tendency 
to associate evils with the other parts of the world and that the human rights 
preoccupation in the West with regard to what was happening in the other parts 
of the world might be implicitly part of that latent racism. That had not 
been stated explicitly but he was concerned that that might have been the 
implication. 

74. He agreed entirely that racism in the strict sense of the word had 
emerged in Europe; however, a clear distinction did not exist between racism, 
religious intolerance, xenophobia and other manifestations. Anti-Semitism, 
for instance, had at some stage been religious discrimination and at a later 
stage had been racial discrimination. Jews had been subject to religious 
persecution in Spain, but had been accepted if they converted to Christianity. 
For Hitler, however, the question had been one of race. The definition 
changed, but the persecution still occurred. With regard to religious 
intolerance, in the past the West had had very serious problems, for example, 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 15 

witch-hunts and the wars between different religious groups. A struggle was 
going on within the so-called superior culture, with a resurgence of 
intolerance and xenophobia, based on the idea not necessarily of racial 
superiority but of preserving one's own culture against the presence and 
participation of other cultures. It also had to be recognized that the 
struggle was going on in Western and other societies. Mr. Sachar had described 
the efforts made in India to prevent the State from becoming the repository of 
one particular religion, and to find ways instead for different religions to 
exist without any one of them imposing its precepts on the others. What to 
him was particularly disturbing were cases where changing one's religion 
carried a risk of the death penalty: at the present stage of human 
civilization he found it incomprehensible that such legislation could exist. 
Wherever a State was a repository of one religion, problems existed. In 1814 
in Norway, after the adoption of a fairly liberal Constitution, Jews had been 
prohibited from entering Norway and it had taken 50 years to change that part 
of the Constitution. There were other provisions of religious discrimination 
that had not been eliminated until 1956, in connection with Norway's accession 
to the European Convention on Human Rights. 

75. The problem existed everywhere and it was better not to try to escape 
analysis of it by assuming that criticism came from one part of the world and 
was directed against other parts. There was a joint struggle to make religions 
appeal to the private conscience of human beings; when religion was imposed 
upon others and dictated their behaviour, that went beyond the function and 
purpose of religion and a serious human rights problem arose. 

76. He therefore strongly supported Mr. van Boven's suggestion that the 
proposals made to the Commission by the Sub-Commission two years earlier in 
resolution 1989/23 should be reiterated. Above all, a dialogue was needed 
between the different religions in the world to find a common platform. 
Otherwise, religions would become a vehicle for different purposes, including 
nationalist and xenophobic attitudes for East-West and North-South 
confrontations. 

77. Mr. Joinet resumed the Chair. 

78. Mrs. ATTAR observed that, although the constitutions of most member 
States protected the freedom of worship, few countries had answered the 
questionnaire requesting information on the practice of freedom of worship, 
and those that had done so had found it difficult to give explanations. That 
was natural, since so many complex issues were involved in the practice of 
religious freedom. She agreed with Mr. Eide that every country experienced 
the problem to some degree: for example in a Christian country where 
Catholicism was the dominant religion there might be barriers against 
Protestants, and vice versa. 

79. The new trends in religious intolerance had nothing to do with religion 
per se, since all major religions preached peace and love; she believed that 
those trends had political connotations. Attempts were being made in many 
countries to manipulate the religious feelings of people for political ends. 
Her own Government was very much aware of that problem and was doing all it 
could to prevent it. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 16 

80. There was also a new trend of extremists in all religions who interfered 
in other religions as well as their own, insisting that their own religion 
should be the State religion. Those extremists were even trying to influence 
children and young people. Anything that could be done to halt that new brand 
of intolerance would be very welcome. Religion was a matter close to 
everyone's heart, and people would defend their religious convictions at all 
costs; that led to human rights violations. She agreed with Mr. Sachar that 
the law enforcement agencies which used extreme methods in trying to put down 
unrest went too far. She also fully agreed with what Mr. van Boven had said 
about the ramifications of the question, which was an extremely serious one 
having nothing to do with true religion. On the question of additional 
instruments, she believed that there were already enough international 
instruments in existence; what might be needed was to implement them. 

81. Mr. SADI said that until the modern era religions had given rise to 
the bloodiest wars. The revival of religion in the world thus brought the 
fear of bloody religious conflict. Religious intolerance was exacerbated in 
modern times by the fact that there were divisions within each religion; 
however, he found the argument that in many countries the priority given 
to religion prevented those countries from meeting their obligations under 
the international covenants and conventions to be unsound, because all 
religions had played an active role in the formulation and adoption of those 
international instruments. He himself belonged to the Muslim faith, which had 
often been accused of intolerance. In fact, intolerance was completely alien 
to his religion. Throughout the history of Islam, Islamic armies in their 
conquests had shown unprecedented tolerance; during their golden era many 
non-Christian communities had sought refuge within the Islamic world because 
they could not find tolerance elsewhere. During the first era of Islamic 
expansion, when the leader of the Islamic armies entered Jerusalem and he was 
invited to pray in the church, his reaction was to refrain from doing so out 
of respect, in order not to give his people a pretext for taking it over. 
That anecdote illustrated how deeply rooted tolerance was in Islam, contrary 
to contemporary impressions. 

82. He hoped that all religions would have an enlightened revival and return 
to their true spirit. Mr. van Boven had referred to the promotion of an 
inter-faith dialogue and the convening of a seminar: inter-faith dialogue was 
urgently needed, but on a level much higher than that of a seminar. In view 
of the magnitude of the problem, there might be more than one special 
rapporteur: representatives of the three monotheistic religions might examine 
the problem. The inter-faith dialogue should begin at the rapporteur level; 
an international conference might be convened subsequently. As had been said, 
the solution lay in the minds and hearts of the people; they had to be 
educated from a very early age. It was necessary to start with the young and 
UNESCO and other international organizations might have a role to play in that 
process of education. In view of the fact that the problem was assuming ever 
greater proportions, he hoped that it would receive a higher priority in the 
future. 

83. Mr. DEER (International Work Group for Indigenous Affairs) invited the 
Sub-Commission to consider the religious intolerance directed against 
indigenous peoples. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 17 

84. Indigenous peoples had a deep understanding of the spiritual relationship 
between themselves and mother earth. Their whole lives, social responsibility 
and political structures were intertwined with their spiritual beliefs. 
Western civilization had, however, degraded those spiritual beliefs to the 
extent that discrimination against them had been institutionalized. 

85. The Mohawk people had for centuries carried out their own ceremonies, 
such as weddings, naming of children and burial of their dead. It had come to 
his organization's attention that Canada, through the province of Quebec, no 
longer recognized the religious rights of births and marriages of Mohawk 
people. That policy, which had started in October 1990, denied the rights of 
the children of Mohawk people who followed their traditional beliefs, to 
medical care, education and any other rights that were granted to other 
Mohawks who might be of Catholic, Protestant or other religious persuasions. 
Such an act of insensitivity by the Canadian Government and its timing could 
only be construed as retaliation for the resistance of the Mohawks to the 
development of a golf course on a Mohawk burial ground. Such action 
represented a clear attempt to undermine the cultural and spiritual values of 
the traditional people. 

86. A year earlier, the attention of the Sub-Commission had been invited to a 
situation concerning the same issue between the police and armed forces in 
Canada on one hand and the Mohawk people on the other. That situation was a 
perfect example of the institutionalized racism which indigenous people faced 
on a day-to-day basis when it came to recognition of their religious beliefs 
and customs. Bearing in mind that 1993 would be the International Year for 
the World's Indigenous People, it was imperative that the Sub-Commission 
should take particular notice of occurrences of religious intolerance and take 
action to protect the religious rights of indigenous peoples. 

87. Mr. ROSSI (International Association for the Defence of Religious 
Liberty), after expressing his organization's appreciation to the 
Sub-Commission for its outstanding contribution to the preparation and 
implementation of the 1981 Declaration on the Elimination of All Forms of 
Intolerance and of Discrimination Based on Religion or Belief, said that the 
tenth anniversary of the Declaration was an appropriate occasion to take note 
of the remarkable results which had been achieved. Hundreds of millions of 
persons previously persecuted for their religious beliefs were now able to 
enjoy freedom of conscience and religion. That was particularly the case in 
Eastern Europe, where most States had adopted or were on the point of adopting 
new legislation guaranteeing complete freedom of conscience and religion. 
Even Albania was drafting a new constitution which would guarantee that right. 

88. Unfortunately, a number of States had taken no legislative action to 
grant freedom of religion and, worse still, others had adopted measures to 
place further limits on such religious freedom as might already exist. 
In 1983, Mauritania had adopted a new Penal Code, article 306 of which 
provided the death penalty for anyone who abandoned the religion followed by 
the majority of the population. In 1991, Sudan had stipulated the death 
penalty for the crime of apostasy against the State religion. Death was also 
the penalty prescribed for apostasy in Saudi Arabia. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 18 

89. In her report to the Sub-Commission (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1987/26), 
Mrs. Odio Benito had found that the provisions of the Universal Declaration 
of Human Rights, the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and 
the 1981 Declaration all had the same goal, namely, that every individual 
should have the right to abandon a religion or a belief and to adopt another 
or not to follow any religion. 

90. The Human Rights Committee, in discussing the report of Sudan in 
July 1990, had agreed with that view and several members of the Committee had 
stated clearly that stipulation of the crime of apostasy, punishable by death, 
was a flagrant violation of article 18 of the International Covenant on Civil 
and Political Rights. His organization considered that the Sub-Commission 
should take a clear position on the issue and invite the attention of the 
Commission on Human Rights so that appropriate measures might be taken. 

91. Prospects in that connection were not reassuring. On 5 August 1990, 
in Cairo, the Foreign Ministers of 45 States members of an international 
organization had adopted a declaration on human rights which would subordinate 
all those rights and freedoms to the provisions of a law referring specifically 
to their religion. In particular, that law stipulated the death penalty for 
apostasy. 

92. It was a matter of urgency that the appropriate organs of the 
international community should clearly state that change of religion should 
not be considered as a crime, as it was a human right of all, and that the 
death penalty for its exercise was completely unacceptable. The Sub-Commission 
could not avoid involvement in the issue which concerned the conscience, 
dignity and very life of millions of people. 

93. Mr. HAMERMAN (International Progress Organization) said that major human 
rights violations were currently taking place in the United States of America 
in respect of freedom of thought, conscience and association and against 
freedom to manifest belief, both in practice and teaching. Those abuses were 
occurring solely because certain beliefs had been targeted by the Government 
and power structures as politically "not correct" and the proponents of those 
beliefs had been vilified in the media and subjected to sustained government 
suppression. 

94. The prime instance of United States Government persecution for purely 
philosophic beliefs centred on championing the rights of the developing 
sector, as distinguished from religious beliefs per se, was the complex of 
cases involving the American political prisoner Lyndon H. La Rouche Jr, whose 
case had been referred to by one of Europe's most distinguished authorities on 
international law as "the American Dreyfuss Affair". La Rouche was the 
founder of a broad-based philosophic and political association which had been 
attacked over a sustained period of time with the full force of government 
repression simply because those in power had found his beliefs to be a direct 
challenge to the delusion that a homogeneous new world order could be imposed 
from the top down. 

95. La Rouche had been a political prisoner for over two and a half years. 
He had been imprisoned virtually simultaneously with the inauguration of 
President George Bush, his long-standing political adversary. Two of his 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 19 

appeals to the United States Supreme Court - one on a habeas corpus writ and 
one on an appeal of his conviction - had been denied without him even being 
granted the right to present his case before that body. He was currently 
serving a 15-year sentence for matters which other nations would consider 
minor administrative or civil infractions. 

96. Over the previous five years, 50 leaders of the La Rouche political 
movement across the United States had been indicted, of whom 18 had been 
convicted in trials which were in violation of international fair trial 
standards and 11 had been jailed for periods varying from between 25 
and 77 years. In addition to those individuals, 5 companies which had 
published writings or expressed beliefs associated with La Rouche had been 
indicted. New Solidarity, a nationally distributed newspaper with a 
circulation of more than 150,000 copies per issue, had been seized by the 
Government in 1987 and shut down. An internationally respected scientific 
journal and association (Fusion Energy Foundation), with an American 
subscriber list of 100,000 alone, had had its offices padlocked and the 
journal banned by the Government four years earlier. Two publishing and 
distribution companies of literature promoting LaRouche's beliefs (Campaigner 
Publications and Caucus Distributors Inc.) which had published and circulated 
millions of copies of leaflets, pamphlets and books promoting third world 
development among Americans had had their offices seized, their presses 
stopped and their stocks of literature confiscated through an extraordinary 
government decree known as "forced bankruptcy". That had represented the 
first occasion in United States history when the Government had utilized 
such a mechanism against publishing and political entities. Moreover, in 
the same time period, the Government had forced a free political action 
committee, namely the National Democratic Policy Committee, to cease 
functioning by imposing a fine of $5 million on it. One individual who had 
contributed a substantial amount of money to promote LaRouche's beliefs, 
Mr. Lewis Dupont Smith, had been dragged into court and found to be mentally 
incompetent for holding those beliefs and barred by Court order from 
controlling his own finances or even marrying. 

97. In his trial LaRouche and his associates had not been charged with overt 
philosophic and political crimes but convicted of State-created "economic 
crimes" which the Government itself had manufactured through the aforementioned 
bankruptcy. First, the Government had shut down the publishing firms through 
the unprecedented "involuntary bankruptcy" procedure. Then they had turned 
around and convicted La Rouche of failing to repay the debts of the companies, 
as well as hiding information from the Internal Revenue Service for the same 
unpayable money. Ten months after La Rouche's imprisonment, the "forced 
bankruptcy" action by the Government had been found by an independent court, 
headed by one of the most prominent bankruptcy judges in the country, to be an 
illegal action, done in bad faith by the Government and obtained by the 
Government by doing a "constructive fraud on the court". Nevertheless 
La Rouche remained in federal prison. 

98. His organization had brought the case to the attention of the Commission 
on Human Rights at its forty-seventh session as a major instance of human 
rights violation through discrimination against a belief and, on 31 May 1991, 
had filed a petition with the Secretary-General under the 1503 procedure. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 20 

Subsequently hundreds of the world's most prominent and respected jurists, 
religious leaders, human rights experts and political figures had filed 
documentation with the Commission on Human Rights urging the United Nations to 
intervene. The expert documentation attesting to the importance of his 
organization's complaint had come from leaders of virtually every major legal 
and civil rights association in the United States; from religious leaders 
around the world; and over 100 senators and congressmen from seven different 
Latin American countries, while 10 United States congressmen, 7 United States 
senators and state legislators from five states had urged the Commission on 
Human Rights to take action in the case. 

99. La Rouche's beliefs centred around three themes, namely: his promotion 
of science, technology and physical economic progress for the developing 
nations, including proposals for large-scale infrastructural and development 
projects for areas in Africa, Asia, the Middle East, Latin America and 
Eastern Europe which the international banking community had written off; his 
opposition to the "demographic political warfare" or "Malthusian genocide", 
which had been waged against the third world; and his opposition to the 
proliferation of a counter-culture and his promotion instead of a revival of 
classical culture which celebrated the sacred dignity of all men and women as 
equally the children of God. 

100. The United States Government had recently declassified a series of 
National Security memoranda covering the period 1974-1977, in which it had 
declared the movement for a new world economic order to be a "national 
security" threat to the United States. The critical document was National 
Security Study Memorandum 200 on "The implications of worldwide population 
growth for United States security and overseas interest" which had been 
written in 1974 by national security advisors Henry Kissinger and 
Brent Scowcroft. One of the main concerns of that memorandum had been to 
check the spread of beliefs which encouraged a new world economic order with 
increasing population growth in the third world. 

101. Mr. LACK (World Jewish Congress and Coordinating Board of Jewish 
Organizations) said that his organization noted with regret that no progress 
could be recorded in the evolution from the 1981 Declaration to a binding 
United Nations convention based on articles 18 of the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights, the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and the 
1981 Declaration itself. Both the Special Rapporteur of the Sub-Commission, 
Mrs. Odio Benito, in her study (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/26) submitted to the 
Sub-Commission in 1987 and the Special Rapporteur of the Commission on Human 
Rights, had urged States, bearing in mind the persistence of the problem of 
intolerance and discrimination based on religion or belief, to continue to 
recognize the importance of preparing a binding separate instrument on the 
elimination of those phenonema, based on the existing standards of 
international human rights law. 

102. Recent documents of the Conference on Security and Cooperation in Europe 
expressed the clear determination of the States concerned to combat all forms 
of racial and ethnic hatred, anti-Semitism, xenophobia and discrimination 
against anyone, as well as persecution on religious or ideological grounds. 
Mr. van Boven's working paper (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1989/32) had set forth the issues 
and factors to be considered before any further standard-setting should be 
undertaken. His organization accepted that enumeration. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 21 

103. The gap between the standards set in article 18 of the International 
Covenant and the 1981 Declaration on the one hand, and the continuing unabated 
violation of those standards on the other, was growing at an alarming rate. 

104. In his recent updated report (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/9) on the right to 
freedom of opinion and expression, Mr. Turk had analysed the legitimacy of 
restrictions on the freedom stipulated in article 19 of the International 
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights in circumstances where that freedom was 
abused for the purpose of inciting to discrimination and violence on grounds 
of race or ethnic origin in violation of article 4 of the Convention on the 
Elimination of All Forms of Racial Discrimination and article 20 of the 
International Covenant. Mr. Turk's analysis of decisions on communications 
under the Optional Protocol to the International Covenant on Civil and 
Political Rights reached by the Human Rights Committee, as well as under 
article 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights by the European 
Commission of Human Rights, notably those concerning incitement to religious 
hatred, left little doubt as to the validity of the restrictions on that right 
in such circumstances. 

105. In his preliminary report on minorities (E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/43), Mr. Eide 
had expressed hesitation about including religious minorities in his study 
because of the difficulty of separating ethnic from religious identification 
of minorities and the lack of clarity as to whether a given minority group's 
self-identification would be that of a religious, ethnic or national entity. 
In the case of the Soviet Union, for example, Jews had been classified as a 
nationality. 

106. The new Soviet law on the freedom of conscience and religious 
organizations, adopted in October 1990, together with the law on the freedom 
of beliefs of 10 November 1990, enabled the conclusion to be reached that 
those texts, both from the standpoints of the Soviet Union's international 
obligations and by comparison with the standards of traditional democracies, 
could be considered as fully compatible with the requirement of current 
international standards. Unfortunately, the process of democratization in the 
Soviet Union had been accompanied by expressions of ethnic and religious 
hatred, including some of markedly anti-Semitic character, and the Soviet 
authorities should be encouraged by Mr. Turk's latest study to deal firmly 
with such abuses. 

107. The report, dated 19 July 1991, by experts of the Conference on Security 
and Cooperation in Europe on national minorities, had stated that the 
participating States, concerned by the proliferation of acts of racial, 
ethnic and religious hatred, anti-Semitism, xenophobia and discrimination, 
had stressed their determination to condemn, on a continuing basis, such 
acts against anyone. Further, the 35 States had stated that they would take 
effective measures, including the adoption, in conformity with their 
constitutional law and their international obligations, if they had not 
already done so, of laws that would prohibit acts that constituted incitement 
to violence based on national, racial, ethnic or religious discrimination, 
hostility or hatred, including anti-Semitism, and policies to enforce such 
laws. 



E/CN.4/Sub.2/1991/SR.8 
page 22 

108. His organization respectfully submitted that the 35 States in question, 
as an expression of their resolve to fulfil their commitments, in particular 
their international obligations, would be well advised to commence drafting at 
the first opportunity, an appropriate and effective binding international 
instrument aimed at eliminating all forms of discrimination based on religion 
or belief. 

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m. 


